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COMMENDATION

Assistant United States Attorneys James M. Kramon
and Parker B. Smith, District of Maryland, have been commended
by Postal Inspector In Charge C.E. Lawrence for their diligent
prosecution in U.S. v. Doctor Stuart Allen Perkal, a mail fraud
case. :
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COMMENDATION

Assistant United States Attorney Daniel Clements,
District of Maryland, has been commended by both Alfred F.
Parisi, M.D., Chief, Cardiology Section, and Assistant
Professor of Medicine, Harvard Medical School; and Morton
I. Rapoport, M.D., Chief of Medicine, Baltimore Veterans
Administration Hospital, and Professor of Medicine, School
of Medicine, University of Maryland. Mr. Clements is so

commended for his diligent prosecution of Kolodny v.
United States, a medical malpractice case.
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POINTS TO REMEMBER

ERRATUM

Bulletin, Vol. 22, No. 25, page 952. Heading should
read: "18 U.S.C. 924(c)(2)."

* * *

INFORMING THE IMMIGRATION AND
NATURALIZATION SERVICE OF ALIENS INDICTED ON
NARCOTICS CHARGES WHO ARE OR MAY BE OUT OF THE COUNTRY

On December 5, 1974, the Deputy Attorney General
advised all United States Attorneys that there have recently
been several instances in which aliens indicted on narcotics
related charges have fled the United States and reentered the
country under their own name without being apprehended because
their names and status had either not been reported to the
Immigration and Naturalization Service or had not yet been
entered in the I&NS national "lookout" book.

In order to minimize the risk of repetition of these
occurrences, United States Attorneys were directed to inform
the District Director of I&NS for their areas immediately of
any alien indicted on a narcotics related charge who is known
to be outside of the United States or who becomes a fugitive
after indictment. The District Director of I&NS will post a
"Jookout" for the individual in his area and forward the
relevant information to I&NS headquarters for inclusion in the
national "lookout" book.

(Criminal Division)

* * *

APPEALS BY THE GOVERNMENT

The language currently found on page 33 of the United
States Attorneys' Manual under the heading of "APPEALS" has
been misinterpreted by several United States Attorneys' offices
in the following respects. If Title VI of the Manual is not
referred to, the first sentence appears to specify the situa-
tions where prior authorization of the Solicitor General is
required. Similarly, because the last sentence of that para-
graph states that the Appellate Section "should be notified...
of all appellate decisions adverse to the Government," that
Section is often not notified of adverse district court pre-
trial rulings, of adverse trial and post-trial district court
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rulings which result in dismissals or acquittals, and of
favorable or equivalent court of appeals rulings.

The Appellate Section has recommended the following
amendment to the language under the abovementioned heading:

APPEALS

Prior authorization of the Solicitor
General (through the Appellate Section of
the Criminal Division) must be obtained for
all appeals by the Government to all appel-
late courts (including petitions for rehearing
en banc, but not for rehearing to the panel)
and for all petitions to such courts for the
issuance of extraordinary writs. All review
in the Supreme Court is handled by the
Department. Two copies of all briefs and
printed records on appeal should be forwarded
to the Department as soon as possible. The
Appellate Section of the Criminal Division
should be notified immediately (within a day
or two) of all decisions which may be adverse
to the Government and should be sent copies
of all adverse district court rulings and
all adverse and favorable court of appeals
rulings. See also Title VI, Appeals.

It is recommended that the amended text be placed in
each United States Attorneys' Manual until such time as page 33
of the Manual is redone.

(Criminal Division)
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ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT

CLAYTON ACT

DEALERS OF DENTAL EQUIPMENT IN METROPOLITAN NEW YORK
FOUND TO HAVE VIOLATED SECTION 7 OF THE CLAYTON ACT.

United States v. Healthco, Inc. (formerly known as
Healthcare Corporation), (70 CIV 1312; January 14, 1975;
DJ 60-190-037-2)

In an opinion of January 14, 1975, Judge Inzer B.
Wyatt found that the effect of four acquisitions made by
defendant Healthco Inc. may be substantially to lessen
competition in the sale by dental dealers of dental equip-
ment in Metropolitan New York in violation of Section 7
of the Clayton Act. Dental dealers are persons or compan-
ies engaged in the purchase of dental products for resale
to dentists, dental laboratories, institutions and govern-
ment agencies. Dental products fall into four recognized
categories: (1) dental equipment, consisting of durable
products such as dental chairs, units and x-ray machines,
(2) dental sundries, consisting of non-durable, consumable
products such as anesthetics, impression and filling ma-
terials and dental burs, (3) artificial teeth and (4)
dental precious metals. ‘

Between April and November of 1969, defendant Healthco,
Inc., which operates a chain of dental dealers throughout
the United States, purchased General Dental Supply Co.

Inc., MA Sechter Dental Equipment and Supply Co. Inc.,
Hebard-Metro Dental Co. Inc. and Hebard Dental Supply Com-
pany, Inc., all dental dealers located within Metropolitan
New York, an area consisting of the City of New York and

-adjoining counties in the State of New York and northern

New Jersey. Healthco had previously entered the market
that same year through its purchase of several SS White
dental dealer outlets pursuant to a 1968 consent decree
dictating the divestiture of those outlets.
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The case was tried between October 15, 1973 and Novem-
ber 9, 1973. We contended that the sale by dental dealers
of all "dental products”" and that two sSubmarkets defined
as the sale by dental dealers of "dental equipment" and
of "dental sundries" each represented an appropriate line
of commerce in which to measure the effect of the acquisi-
tions. The Court agreed with us, rejecting defendant's
contention that sales made by manufacturers directly to
dentists and other ultimate consumers should be included
in the relevant market.

The Court found that Metropolitan New York is an ap-
propriate "section of the country" since it represents a
rough approximation of the area of effective competition
in which the acquiring and acquired companies did busi-
ness. It rejected defendant's contention that the appro-
priate section of the country in this case was either the
entire nation or an area smaller than Metropolitan New
York.

A large part of the opinion was devoted to an anal-
ysis of the weight to be given to statistical evidence
introduced by both sides. The Court concluded that "On
the record as a whole . . . the government's statistical
exhibits present a reasonably accurate picture of the
competition in the two submarkets." Defendant's expert
witnesses testified that a number of trade association
surveys indicated that sales within the relevant market
were double or triple those disclosed by staff-conducted
surveys. The Court stated that it could not with any con-
fidence accept the data on which defendant's experts based
their market estimates because no one connected with the
taking of the trade association surveys was called as a
witness at trial.

On the basis of the statistical evidence, the Court
found that competition had been substantially lessened in
violation of Section 7 in the submarket defined as the
sale by dental dealers of dental equipment. It determined
that the four acquisitions by Healthco eliminated as com-
petitive factors in the dental equipment submarket the
companies ranked first, third, sixth and eighth in a heav-
ily concentrated market.
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The Court decided that there was no violation of
Section 7 in the submarket defined as the sale by dental
dealers of dental sundries. It found the barriers to entry
to be low and that there was an "increasing trend of mail
order houses as a competitive force in this market." The
Court stated that there was no need to consider or make
separate findings as to the broad line of commerce.

The Court took a novel approach in evaluating the
effect of the acquisitions by viewing them in the aggregate
since they were close in time, in area and in product mar-
ket. It stated that, "Section 7 of the Act does not re-

quire that each acquisition be examined separately; they

may be evaluated for their combined effect. A discussion
of the legislative history on this point, with reference
to some precedents, appears in Credit Bureau Reports, Inc.
v. Retail Credit Co., 358 F. Supp. 780, 794 (S.D. Texas
1971)." :

The Supreme Court's recent decision in United States
v. General Dynamics Corporation, 415 U.S. 486 (1974) had
been brought to the Court's attention by defendants who
argued that "dramatic changes" in the dental industry re-
quired less reliance on government statistics and a con-
clusion that no substantial lessening of competition had
occurred. The Court stated that General Dynamics was not
applicable because while the changes in that case "had
already taken place and were undisputable, the changes
here claimed are in the future and speculative."

Staff: John Sirignano, Jr., Melvin Lublinski, Edwin
Weiss and Roberto Boneta
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CIVIL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Carla A. Hills

COURT- OF APPEALS

BANK HOLDING COMPANY ACT

RN

EIGHTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT COMPETING BANKS CANNOT OBTAIN
JUDICIAL REVIEW OF A FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD ORDER WHEN THE BANKS
FAILED TO EXHAUST THIER ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDY.

T g

First National Bank of St. Charles, et al. v. Board of
Governors (C.A. 8, No. 74-1312; D.J. 145-105-99).

) Pursuant to 12 U.S.C. 1842(a) (3), Mark Twain Bancshares,

2 a bank holding company, applied to the Federal Reserve Bank

i for permission to acquire a proposed Missouri state bank. The

S Board invited comments on Bancshares' application by publishing

. a notice in the Federal Register. When no objections were re-

[ ceived, the Board approved the application. Four competing

Missouri banks then petitioned for review of the Board's order
pursuant to 12 U.S.C. 1848 and 1850. Those sections provide for
review in a court of appeals upon a petition by any "party ag- '
grieved" by an order of the Board.

Accepting the Government's position, the Eighth Circuit
dismissed the petition for lack of jurisdiction on the ground
that the competing banks had not exhausted their administrative
remedy. The court construed Whitney National Bank v. Bank of
New Orleans, 379 U.S. 411 (1965), as barring judicial review
of objections to a bank holding company's acquisition applica-
tion when those objections had not first been presented to the
Board. 1In addition, the Eighth Circuit held that banks which
had not opposed an application in the Board proceedings were
not "parties aggrieved" by the Board's decision. Consequently,
the court held, 12 U.S.C. 1848 and 1850 do not confer Jurls-
diction over a petition filed by such banks.

P """:.’-'9{3-“5-""”“"':. T SLTE e b

Staff: Anthony J. Steinmeyer (Civil Division)
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DISAPPOINTED BIDDERS

SIXTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT ALTHOUGH DISAPPOINTED BIDDER
POSSESSES STANDING TO ATTACK AWARD OF A CONTRACT TO A COMPETI-
TOR, IT IS NOT ENTITLED TO INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.

Cincinnati Electronics Corporation v. Thomas S. Kleppe,
Administrator Small Business Administration, and Howard H.
Callaway, Secretary of the Army (C.A. 6, Nos. 73-2046 and
74-1170, decided January 31, 1975; D.J. 105-58-86).

The plaintiff corporation, allegedly a small business,
sought to enjoin the award of a contract (for which only small
businesses were eligible) to a competitor. Plaintiff alleged
that the contracting officer had unlawfully refused to refer
plaintiff's protest that the competitor was not in fact a small
business to. the Small Business Administration. The district
court denied plaintiff's motion for a preliminary injunction
and dismissed plaintiff's suit against the Army.

The Court of Appeals affirmed the denial of the prelimi-
nary injunction, but reversed on the merits. The court held
that the disappointed bidder possessed standing to maintain
the suit, but only because of the specific statutory directive
in favor of awarding a fair proportion of government contracts
to small businesses. On the merits, the court held that the
contracting officer had violated the applicable regulations.
However, the court held that the plaintiff was entitled only
to a declaratory judgment as the result of this holding.
According to the court, while plaintiff could bring suit to
vindicate the public's interest in the government's compliance
with its regulations, the public's interest in efficient govern-
mental purchasing procedures precluded the disruption of the
process through the award of injunctive relief.

Staff: David M. Cohen (Civil Division)
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SEX DISCRIMINATION

SUPREME COURT UPHOLDS CONSTITUTIONALITY OF NAVAL STATUTES
WHICH REQUIRE SEPARATION OF UNPROMOTED MALE OFFICERS PRIOR TO
UNPROMOTED FEMALE OFFICERS.

Schlesinger v. Ballard (S. Ct., No. 73-776, decided
January 16, 1375; D.J. 145-15-433)

Plaintiff Ballard was a lieutenant in the Navy who, having
twice failed of selection for promotion to lieutenant commander,
was scheduled for discharge, after some 9 years of commissioned
service, pursuant to the mandatory requirement of 10 U.S.C.
6382(a). The plaintiff brought an action in the district court
seeking to enjoin his discharge until he completed 13 years
of commissioned service, arguing that female lieutenants of
the Navy appointed under 10 U.S.C. 5590 were granted 13 years
of commissioned service prior to being separated for failure
of promotion. 10 U.S.C. 6401. A three-judge district court
issued the requested injunction, agreeing with the plaintiff
that the differing attrition statutes constituted a "suspect"
sex classification which was not supported by a compelling
governmental interest.

on the government's appeal, the Supreme Court in a 5-4
decision reversed. Noting that the Navy does not permit women
to serve on Naval combat vessels and aircraft (10 U.S.C. 6015),
the majority opinion reasoned that, in enacting and retaining
the different attrition statutes, "Congress may * * * quite
rationally have believed that women line officers had less op-
portunity for promotion than did their male counterparts * & &
The majority also expressed a need to defer to legislative
and executive judgment on matters of military organization and
administration. The dissenting justices considered that the
statutes in question constituted a "suspect" sex classification
which was supported by neither a compelling nor a rational

- basis.

Staff: Harriet S. Shapiro (Office of the Solicitor
: General), Michael Kimmel (Civil Division)
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CRIMINAL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General John C. Keeney

DISTRICT COURT

MULTIFAMILY HOUSING PROSECUTION

On December 17, 1974, the jury returned a guilty
verdict in United States v. John Elwyn Prothro on both counts
of a two count indictment. The case essentially involved the
inflation of the acquisition cost of the land to be used on two
.FHA projects by the sponsor and the concealment of the true
‘acquisition cost from HUD.

In the first transaction charged the defendant pur-
chased the property for the project for $64,000. He then
deeded the property to his former law partner who then granted
the defendant an option on the property for $327,000. The
option was then submitted to HUD with an application for the
project. In the second project, the defendant secured an
option to buy the property for $91,000. He then had one of his
silent partners execute an option to sell the property to him
for $300,000 which he submitted to HUD with his application.

HUD testified that they conducted an independent
appraisal and the option has only a subtle effect on the
appraisal. However, HUD also testified that the amount the
sponsor paid for the land is a ceiling on the amount available
at the initial draw on the mortgage advance, and the appraisers
are required to justify their appraisal in writing if it is in
excess of what the applicant paid for the property. The court
instructed the jury that the government had to prove only that
the fact alleged to be material had some weight in the process
of reaching a decision. The fact the agency would have accepted
or rejected the application irrespective of the concealed fact
is not determinative of materiality. This instruction, of
course, applies to materiality with respect to the appraisal;
that the appraiser makes an appraisal independent of the value
placed on the land by the sponsor is not controlling on
materiality if it can be shown that the appraiser or HUD for
- other purposes took that information into account.

Prothro was indicted on two counts of concealing a
material fact (Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001) in
July by the Dallas grand jury as part of the FHA Task Force
effort. The trial lasted six days, two of which included the
testimony of the defendant and his lawyer on the four projects.

Staff: United States Attorney Frank McCown
(N.D. Texas); James J. Graham (Fraud
Section, Criminal Division); Assistant
United States Attorney William F.
Sanderson (N.D. Texas)
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LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Wallace H. Johnson

COURTS OF APPEALS

ENVIRONMENT

ADEQUACY OF EIS; STANDARD OF REVIEW; DISA-
BILITY OF PROJECT.

U PR A it

S Trout Unlimited, et al. v. Morton. (C.A. 9, No. 74-
’ 1974, Dec. 23, 1974; D.J. 90-1-4-382).

P Suit to enjoin construction of Teton Dam and Res-

£ ervoir Project, on Teton River in Idaho, for alleged failure
fz to prepare an adequate EIS under NEPA. The district court,
- after twice denying preliminary injunctive relief and a

B

trial on the merits, found the EIS adequate.

On appeal the Ninth Circuit affirmed, holding
that the EIS, which was prepared prior to the promulgation
of CEQ's first guidelines and consisting of 14 pages,-
adequately examined essential environmental factors. The
court also concluded that, in assessing the adequacy of an
EIS, it would adhere to its previously announced standards
under the APA in_Lathan v. Brinegar, . F.24 ___ (c.a. 9,
1974), namely, Section 706(2) (D), the "without observance
of procedure required by law" standard.

K L. S N B R T
R A o e SO k2

The court further concluded that the "second phase"
of the Teton Project, an expansive irrigation development,
need not be examined in the EIS since it must first be sub-
ject to a finding of feasibility by the Secretary, 43
U.5.C. sec. 616(c), and then resubmitted to Congress for

§ appropriations. An EIS on the second phase will be! pre-
: pPared and submitted to Congress along with the feasibility
report.

Finally, the court concluded that NEPA does not
require a mathematical cost/benefit analysis, since "public
affairs defy the control that precise quantification of its
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issues would impose." A cost/benefit analysis was, however,
included in the Secretary's original request for authoriza-
tion in 1964.

Staff: William M. Cohen and Neil T. Proto
(Land and Natural Resources Division).

ENVIRONMENT

CLEAN AIR ACT; STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLANS; APPLI-
CABILITY OF NEPA; ADJUDICATORY AND ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
UNDER THE APA.

Indiana & Michigan Electric Company, et al. v.
EPA (C.A. 7, Nos. 72-1491 and 72-1498, Jan. 23, 1975; D.J.
90-5-2-3-23 and 90-5-2-3-40).

On review of the Environmental Protection Agency's
approval of the Indiana and Illinois Implementation Plans
pursuant to Section 110 of the Clean Air Act Amendments of
1970, the court held that the agency, in approving a plan
under that section, need not comply with NEPA; that in
approving a plan the Administrator of EPA need not consider
its technological fea51b111ty nor its economic impact; that
technological and economic factors are to be considered in
enforcement proceedlngs under Section 113 rather than under
Section 110; that in approv1ng a plan the Agency was neither
unreasonable nor capricious; that good faith compliance
with a plan on the part of industry is to be considered by
the district court in enforcement proceedings; and that
in approving a plan under Section 110, the Agency need not
hold rule making nor adjudicatory hearings under the Adminis-
trative Procedure Act.

Staff: Glen R. Goodsell (Land and Natural Resources
Division).

RES JUDICATA

PRIOR ADJUDICATION OF RIGHT OF SIOUX HALF-BREED
SCRIP TO CASH REDEMPTION BARS NEW SUIT.

Barney Colson v. Morton (C.A. D.C. No. 74-1479,
Jan. 24, 1975; D.J. 90-1-23-1773).

Colson brought this suit in the District of
Colgmpia seeking to reverse the Secretary of the Interior's
decision denying him a cash redemption in lieu of land for
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two Sioux Half-Breed certificates originally issued in
1830 by the Treaty of Prairie du Chien, 7 Stat. 328.

The district court concluded that Colson's claim was
barred by res judicata since he had litigated it before in
Colson v. Udall, 278 F.Supp. 826 (M.D. Fla. 1968), aff'd
Colson v. Hickel, 428 F.2d 1046 (C.A. 5, 1970), cert. den.,
Colson v. Hickel, 401 U.S. 911 (1971).

The court of appeals summary affirmed without
argument.

Staff: Herbert Pittle and Neil T. Proto (Land
and Natural Resources Division).

ENVIRONMENT

APPLICABILITY OF NEPA TO POSTAL SERVICE; ADEQUACY
OF NEGATIVE STATEMENT. ’

City of Thousand Oaks v. United States of America,
et al. (C.A. 9, No. 74-2685, Oct. 1, 1974; D.J. 90-1-4-1008).

Plaintiffs sought to enjoin construction of a
post office in their city until an environmental impact
Statement was prepared by the U.S. Postal Service. An
environmental assessment for this project, which concluded
that there would be no adverse impact, was prepared by the
Corps of Engineers. (The Corps was originally to construct
the building for the Postal Service, but this contract was
terminated by order of the Office of Management and Budget.)
Based on the results of the Corps' assessment the Postal
Service did not prepare an environmental impact statement
before beginning construction. The district court dismissed
the action, holding Section 410 of the Postal Reorganization
Act of 1970, 39 U.S.C. sec. 410, exempted the Postal Servive
from the procedural requirement of NEPA.

On appeal the court of appeals affirmed the re-
sult but expressly disaffirmed the district court's holding
that the Postal Service was exempt from NEPA. The circuit

court held the negative statement was adequate to show no
anvironmental impact.

Staff: Larry A. Boggs (Land and Natural Resources
Division); Assistant United States Attorney
Huston Carlyle (C.D. Cal.).
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ENVIRONMENT

NEPA ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT NEED ONLY DESCRIBE
REASONABLY FORESEEABLE EFFECTS OF PROPOSED ACTION, NOT
POSSIBLE CATASTROPHIC ACCIDENT.

Carolina Environmental Study Group v. The United
States and the United States A.E.C. (C.A. D.C. No. 73-
1869, Jan. 21, 1975; D.J. 90-1-4-710).

An environmental group appealed from a decision
of the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board of the AEC granting
to Duke Power Company a construction license to build two
nuclear reactors for generation of electricity near Charlotte,
North Carolina. On petition for review appellants argued
that the AEC's NEPA environmental impact statement was
inadequate because of inadequate consideration of the impact
of a breach-of-reactor containment accident and the alterna-
tives of no power, other power sources or the possibility
of a decreasing demand for power.

The Fourth Circuit affirmed, holding that NEPA
requires a description of reasonably foreseeable effects;
that NRDC v. Morton had envisioned a rule of reason to
ascertain the anticipated effects. Thus, the court con-
cluded, the AEC's failure to elaborate on a Class 9
accident (a catastrophic breakdown of the emergency core
cooling system) was justified because of the unlikelihood
of such a breakdown. Similarly, the court concluded
that failure to consider development of o0il shale, geo-
thermal energy, and solar energy in the EIS was not fatal
because these future developments are speculative and remote
and this plant is to operate until the year 2106. Finally,
the court rejected the environmentalists' argument that
the built-in bias of the AEC denied them due process.

: . . ‘ Staff: Edmund B. Clark (Land and Natural Re-
sources Division); Raymond M. Zimmet
(A.E.C.).

e Lttt et M s
it g8t St AR R

: 2
ol Jg




